
 
9-14-10 

Town of Fairfield Housing Authority 
 

The Housing Authority of Fairfield held a meeting on September 14, 2010 at 6:00 p.m. in 
the Community Room at 15 Pine Tree Lane. 
 
PRESENT:         Carol Landsman, Chair 

Rita Waterman, Vice-chair 
Dorothy Anderson, Treasurer 
Cynthia Perham, Commissioner 
Norine Zalenski, Resident Commissioner 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Elizabeth Gutierrez, Executive Director 

Michael Gurge, HCV Administrator 
Carolyn Durgy, Resident Services Coordinator 
Residents: Julie Tomchik; Yvonne Razdrih; Sue White 

 
DISTRIBUTIONS: Draft minutes of August 10, 2010; VAWA letter, M. Gurge; 
Management Report; FHA Directory; Agreement Between Owner & Architect for 
Architectural Services (2/21/2008) 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Ms. Landsman called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m.  
 
MINUTES: The minutes of August 13, 2010 were approved as amended. 
 
REPORT OF THE CHAIR 
 
Ms. Landsman congratulated Norine Zalenski on her appointment as Resident 
Commissioner. 
 
Ms. Landsman complimented Ms. Durgy on the new format for the Newsletter. Ms. 
Waterman suggested that it be sent to the Economic Development Department, Operation 
Hope, and other major stakeholders in Fairfield. 
 
Ms. Landsman said the Board is continuing to explore the issue of providing health 
insurance for its employees.  
 
TREASURER’S REPORT 
 
Ms. Anderson said there is no paper report for this month. She said recent expenditures 
include office renovation. Ms. Gutierrez said some unpaid bills have been found and she 
is investigating. The contractor for Trefoil has not been fully paid pending resolution of a 
number of issues. Ms. Gutierrez is evaluating the service by suppliers such as Home 
Depot and Staples to see if there should be some competitive bidding on the needs of the  
 
FHA.  

 1



 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 
Ms. Gutierrez mentioned that she had been having difficulty accessing information on-
line relative to the accounts held by Chase Bank. She will be looking for other options for 
the accounts. Also under review will be accounts with Home Depot, Staples, UI and 
phone services. 
 
Ms. Gutierrez referred to the open management review by JEFCO. The tenant selection 
tool must be approved. The policies of the FHA must be approved by the Board. Ms. 
Anderson suggested that each board member have a copy to read before approval.  The 
plan will be approved at the October meeting. Ms. Gutierrez said that the HCV 
administrative plan needs quick approval. Ms. Landsman suggested that the Board sign 
the plan and amend it later if deemed necessary. The motion was approved. 
 
Ms. Gutierrez said she had hoped to be able to fill vacancies quickly, but of five potential 
tenants interviewed, none were found to be eligible. Ms. Landsman asked if more than 
five prospects a month could be interviewed. Ms. Gutierrez said she could interview five 
a day.  
 
Ms. Gutierrez said she has documentation to support $92,000 spent for maintenance in 
2009. To date, $42,000 has been spent in 2010. She said it seems that a full-time 
maintenance person would be more satisfactory than the current arrangement. There have 
been some complaints about the work of the current landscaper. She said the tenants 
expect quick response to their needs. Currently, the fulfillment of work orders has been 
slow. Ms. Landsman asked for input from the Board. She commended Ms. Gutierrez for 
her handling of the tenants requests and concerns. Currently, Paul is handling some of the 
repairs and there has been some concern expressed as to his attitude. Ms. Waterman 
asked if he was licensed and had insurance. He is and does. Ms. Landsman asked where 
another full-time employee would have office space. Ms. Gutierrez said she would like to 
see competition for the work. Ms. Landsman suggested placing an ad for a position in 
local papers. Ms. Gutierrez said there is much work to be done to organize the work of 
the FHA.  
 
Ms. Waterman asked Ms. Zalenski for her input. She said she feels the response time is 
good. She questioned whether there might be too much work for one person since the job 
includes everything from plumbing repairs to changing light bulbs. Ms. White said Paul 
has work outside of the FHA.  
 
Ms. Gutierrez said she is investigating the purchase of uniforms or finding some way to 
make employees readily identifiable to the public. It may be advisable to get photo 
nametags. 
 
Ms. Gutierrez that she and Mr. Gurge will be transferring financial and residential 
information to PHA Web. This will unify records and enable expenditures to be tracked 
more easily. 
 

 2



Ms. Tomchik asked about the status of mailboxes for the complexes. Ms. Gutierrez is still 
investigating the availability of an appropriate arrangement satisfactory to the residents 
and the post office.  
 
It was suggested that a prominent, welcoming, sign be erected at each complex with the 
name and the dwelling numbers on it to make it easier for visitors to find the individual 
units. 
 
Ms. Tomchik indicated that the peepholes in the doors were inadequate.  Ms. Gutierrez 
said they must be placed at a standard height and that there is a different standard for the 
homes of the disabled. 
 
Ms. Gutierrez will discuss the matter of the unsatisfactory doors with the contractor.  
 
REPORT OF THE RESIDENT SERVICES COMMISSIONER 
 
Ms. Durgy reported that she made several home visits in August and that they were 
appreciated by the residents. She also visited two residents who are in Cambridge Manor.  
She said one other person needed help and Ms. Durgy referred the person to the town’s 
social services department.    
 
Ms. Durgy said the Fire Marshall had been to Trefoil and would come to Pine Tree on 
September 24. She attended a medicare workshop recently and there would be a medicare 
fraud program in October. Ms. Durgy is assembling a binder that will contain notices of 
the different programs and activities available to the residents. It will be kept in the office 
for perusal. The Captain’s Cove trip was very successful but a trip to Port Jefferson was 
cancelled due to lack of participation. Ms. Gutierrez said at least 10 are needed to make a 
trip possible and that perhaps it would be scheduled for June or July 2011. The ice cream 
socials were well received. There will be a trip to the Christmas Tree Shop in October a 
well as blood pressure screening and flu shot distribution. A Thanksgiving party will be 
held at Pine Tree and one at Christmas at Trefoil. Ms. Durgy will get turkeys for these 
events. 
 
HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER/SECTION 8 
 
Mr. Gurge reported that he attended a NAHRO convention at which legislative updates in 
the areas of health and safety were detailed. As a result, he said the FHA needs to 
establish a Safety Committee. It should consist of Ms. Gutierrez, Mr. Gurge, and 
representatives from Trefoil, Pine Tree and the HVC programs. Ms. Landsman asked if 
the FHA had a disaster preparedness plan. The response was ‘no.’ 
 
Mr. Gurge said notices were sent to some tenants regarding the EIV system explaining 
the procedures affecting payments owed and the procedures that would be undertaken in 
the event a tenant is in arrears. As of August, the net restricted assets were $19,000. 
Fraud recovery funds amounted to $272.00 with $5031.80 still owed.  
 
Mr. Gurge said that in the last two months he has become aware of three domestic 
violence cases affecting tenants under his jurisdiction. Two appear to have been resolved 

 3



and a third is being handled through the Fairfield Police Department. The tenant will be 
allowed to move and her payments will be adjusted to help her find affordable housing. 
Ms. Gutierrez will be submitting a report of these cases and their resolution to NAHRO 
with the expectation of achieving an award for Mr. Gurge to recognize his handling of 
these situations.  
 
On September 24, there will be inspections of some units at Trefoil and on September 30, 
at Pine Tree in accordance with HUD requirements. 
 
Mr. Gurge said that utility allowances have not been updated for some time, but that he 
hopes to have this accomplished by October 1. 
 
Mr. Gurge and Ms. Gutierrez said they have been having problems with the accounts at 
Chase and they will be looking for an alternative. 
 
On September 23, Mr. Gurge will participate in some web cast training. 
 
Mr. Gurge ended his report by thanking the Commissioners for their choice of Ms. 
Gutierrez as the Executive Director. He said they have a very cooperative working 
arrangement.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Ms. Landsman asked about the status of the phones web site. Ms. Gutierrez said moving 
to the PHA Web will alleviate some of the problems with communication. 
 
Ms. Landsman asked if Ms. Gutierrez had any suggestions to make regarding the 
physical plant and the need to provide more office space. Ms. Gutierrez said she had not 
had adequate time to evaluate the situation and that the FHA is not at a point to accept 
bids on modification to existing structures. Mr. Gurge suggested looking at options for 
storage of records, etc. 
 
Ms. Gutierrez said there was no word from the contractor. The siding firm was looking 
for payment, but the FHA will not make this until it is assured that the work is done. So 
far as payment to Mr. Cerrone, there was expressed opinion that he had violated his 
contract. He was not on site on dates for which he submitted bills. Ms. Anderson 
suggested withholding payment until he provides documentation to substantiate his 
request. She said there was still a punch list of items to be adjusted or completed. 
 
Ms. Perham said it would be necessary to get further bids on the parking lot 
rearrangement. She will continue to work on this. 
 
Ms. Zalenski inquired about the tree that has been hanging over some FHA property for 
some time. It belongs to a neighbor but poses a hazard to FHA residents.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Ms. Anderson asked if the gates are open. Ms. Gutierrez said they were. 

 4



 
Ms. Zalenski remarked that the sidewalks needed attention and it would be good to have 
this work done before winter. Ms. Gutierrez said she thought the Department of Housing 
and Economic Development would allot some grant money for this project.   
 
The regular meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. The commissioners adjourned to Executive 
Session. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Gretchen Goethner 
 
 
 

 5


